
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
LAMTD BOARD MEETING 

1212 George Jenkins Blvd. Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
 

Wednesday, June 8, 2016, at 8:30 a.m. 
 
 

 

 

  

 Call to Order          Action Required 
•    Roll Call 

 
 

1. Approval of Minutes   
      a.      May 11, 2016, Board Meeting Approval 

            
2. Human Resources / Mary Lynne Janoso  None 

      a.     GEM Award   
 

3. Public Comments  TBD 
  

4. Finance / David Persaud   
a.   LAMTD March Financial Report       None 
b.   PT January Financial Report       None 
c.   Operations Grant/JPA 5310 Agreement - Resolution #16-15    Approval 
d.   IT TD Grant Purchase Update       None 
e.   GEICO Bus Update        None 
f.    Fuel Bid Award        None 
g.   TD Grant Approval  - Resolution #16-18      Approval 
h.   5307 Operations Funding for Fixed - Resolution #16-19    Approval 
i.    TE Grant Agreement        Approval 
 

5. Darby Law Group / Tim Darby   
      a.    2016-2017 LAMTD Board Schedule Resolution #16-16  Approval 
      b.    LAMTD Board Meeting Schedule Change Resolution #16-17  Approval 
      c.    Peace River UAP Renewal  Approval 
       

6. Government & Community Relations / Erin Killebrew 
      a.    “DC Fly In” – Powerpoint Presentation  None 
 

7. Board Action  TBD 
 
 

8.  Reports / Tom Phillips         
     a.   Executive Update                                                                              None 
     b.   Strategic Planning Summary - KSI       None 
     c.   Polytechnic Update        None 
      
 

9. Other Business  TBD 
 
 

Adjournment 

    



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #1(a) 

Agenda Item: May 11, 2016 Meeting Minutes Approval 

Presenter: Marcy Harrison, Executive Assistant 

Recommended 
Action: Minutes Approval 

Summary: 

Attachments: -Approval of April 13, 2016 minutes
-Public Hearing - May 11, 2016 minutes
-Approval Items Only - May 11, 2016 minutes 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 

APRIL 13, 2016 

 

 
 
   

Directors: 
City of Lakeland Commissioner John Hall - Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey – Vice Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner Jim Malless - Secretary 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Don Selvage  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker 
 
Executive Director:  Tom Phillips 
Executive Assistant:  Marcy Harrison 
 
 
Call to Order  
 8:30a.m. by Chairman John Hall 
 
 
 
 
Roll Call 

Present   Excused                           
Commissioner Hall    Commissioner Salvage                         
Commissioner Malless                            

 Commissioner Lindsey 
 Commissioner Walker 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of Minutes 
Approval requested for the approval of the March 9, 2016 LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes. 
     
                  “Approval March 9, 2016 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments  
None at this time 
 
 
LAMTD Meeting Adjourn for Bus Tour    8:39am 
 
 
LAMTD Board Meeting Reconvenes        8:57am 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item #3 – Finance / David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
(a) LAMTD Financial Report 

 
Year to Date February 29, 2016 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 42% $6,128,506 $4,314,046 70% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 42% $4,301,529 $3,297,621 77% $10.3 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through February 29, 2016 totaled $4.3 million or 70% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect 89% of budgeted revenues through February 29, 2016.  The revenues are over budget 
due to contractual revenues from RAMCO $93,000 received. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.34 million or 92% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The first billing covered 
the second quarter ending March 31, 2015.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the services must be 
provided before we receive grant assistance.  

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income totaled $68,000 or 93% of budget. 
 

• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 
cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through February 29, 2016 totaled $3.3 million or 77% of the YTD budget. 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of February 29, 2016 those expenses   
totaled $2.2 million or 83% of the YTD budget of $2.7 million due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $94,000 or 54% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $17,000 or 29% of the YTD budget.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $187,000 or 51% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $264,000 under budget by 13% due to decrease use of parts and supplies, a 

favorable variance 
 

• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $29,000 over budget 38% offset with revenues. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 
Program subscription. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $249,000, over the budget due to 

property appraiser fees and CRA fees of $139,200. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through February 29, 2016 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through Feb. 29th the financials reflect favorable budget to 
actual performance. (revenues over expenses) due to receipt of property tax revenue. 

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
b. PT Financial Report 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

                          Polk County Transit Contract 
                                       Month of February 29, 2016 
                                              Year to Date Report 
                                      Percent of FY Reported (42%) 

 
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $2.234 million or 82% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grant drawdown will occur later in the fiscal year based on expenses incurred on a reimbursement basis. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $49,000, or 63% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The County funding is designed to reflect a 1/12 allocation as cash advance to facilitate cash flow with receipt of 

$2.2 million. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $1.7 million or 61% of the year-to-date budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $1 million or 70% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $675,000 or 71% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services is for contractual cost for the Lynx service and other planned contractual services such as 

Transportation Disadvantaged that is lagging. 
 
 
c. PCTS Financials 

Revenue 
      

 Annual Budget % YTD Budget YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Revenues      

FTA 5307 Grant $         1,125,545 17% $        468,977 $                  - 0% 
Fares $            186,661 3% $         77,775 $         48,913 63% 
PCTS $         5,245,278 80% $     2,185,533 $     2,185,533 100% 
Total $         6,557,484 100% $     2,732,285 $     2,234,445 82% 

      
      
      

Expenses 
      

 Annual Budget % YTD Budget YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Labor $         3,434,803 52% $     1,431,168 $     1,000,622 70% 

      
Contract $            833,783 13% $        347,410 $                  - 0% 

      
Operating $         2,288,898 35% $        953,708 $        675,455 71% 

      
Total $         6,557,484 100% $     2,732,285 $     1,676,077 61% 

 
 
 

 



 

d. Ridership Update 

 



 

e. Resolution #16-11 – FDOT Joint Participation 
Request Approval to accept additional funding under the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Joint Participation 
Agreement (JPA) (FM#432838-1-94-01), and associated Resolution #16-11, by Roll Call Vote. 
 

 FDOT has allocated additional funding in the amount of $50,000 with $12,500 in local match for a total of $62,500 in Fiscal 
Year 2015/2016 under the State Transit Service Development Program, a capital grant for Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) related accessibility.  
  
This funding will allow the District to meet regulatory compliance and improvements to bus stops along the State Highway 
Systems (SHS) throughout Polk County. 
 

   Roll Call Vote: 
 John Hall, Chairman   Yes 
   George Lindsey, Vice-Chairman  Yes 
   James Malless    Yes 
   Phillip Walker    Yes 

                  
          MOTION APPROVED 
 
f. Resolution#16-12 – FDOT Joint Participation 

 Recommend Approval to accept additional funding under the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Joint 
Participation Agreement (JPA) (FM#414063-1-84-03), and associated Resolution #16-12, by Roll Call Vote. FDOT has 
allocated funding in the amount of $452,852 with $452,852 local funds for a total of $ 905,704 in Fiscal Years 2016-2018 
under the State Public Transit Corridor Program for operating, marketing, and promotional expenditures of a transit 
corridor service operating along South Florida Avenue and State Road 37, a north/south corridor.  This funding will allow 
the District to continue the multi-modal travel options reducing traffic congestion in the S.R. 37 (South Florida Avenue) 
Corridor. High frequency services for buses, with frequencies less than 30 minutes, will continue during peak evening 
hours 

 
   Roll Call Vote: 
 John Hall, Chairman   Yes 
   George Lindsey, Vice-Chairman  Yes 
   James Malless    Yes 
   Phillip Walker    Yes 

     MOTION APPROVED 
 
g. Designation of Signature Authority for Transit Award Management System 
Request approval of Tom Phillips, David Persaud and John Satchell for to have Personal Identification Number in 
connection with the execution of grant applications.  Authorize Tom Phillips, David Persaud and John Satchell to be 
assigned, and to use, a Personal Identification Number (PIN) in TrAMS in connection with the execution of the annual 
Certifications and Assurances issued by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), submission of FTA grant applications, 
and the execution of FTA grant awards, in each case on their behalf and on behalf of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit 
District. 
  

   Roll Call Vote: 
 John Hall, Chairman   Yes 
   George Lindsey, Vice-Chairman  Yes 
   James Malless    Yes 
   Phillip Walker    Yes 

     MOTION APPROVED 
 



 

Agenda Item #4 – Darby Law Group / Tim Darby 
a. Requesting approval for the LDDA Universal Access Program 
                   “Approval of the LDDA Universal Access Program” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
b. Approval to move the May 11th, 2016  Strategic Planning meeting to the Circle B Bar Ranch 
                             “Approval move Strategic Planning meeting to the Circle B Bar Ranch” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Agenda Item #5 – Marketing / Dave Walters 
a. Try Transit Day Proclamation – The proclamation is dedicated to improving air quality, reducing traffic 
congestion, promoting health and physical fitness, and reducing energy consumption. “Go Green, Save Green” 
 
Requesting approval to proclaim April 26, 2016 as “Try Transit Day” 
                             “Approval to make April 26, 2016 “Try Transit Day” 
             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Agenda Item #7  -  Human Resources / Mary Lynne Janoso & Aaron Dunn 
a. Authorization to add a position in Para Transit Operations for the Transportation Disadvantaged Program 
On April 1st 2016 the Citrus Connection officially assumed the state Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
(CTD) appointment as the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC). The overall mission of Florida Transportation 
Disadvantaged Program is to ensure the availability of safe, efficient, cost-effective and quality transportation services 
for the transportation disadvantaged population of a designated service area.  

  
              The CTC will be responsible for the TD program with the following responsibilities (pertinent to the TDAPA):  

I. Plan, administer, monitor, coordinate, arrange, and deliver coordinated Transportation Disadvantaged services 
originating in their designated service area 

a) Operate centralized call center 
b) Determine trip eligibility 
c) Schedule trips 
d) Perform gatekeeping duties 
e) Invoice purchasing agencies 

 
II. Recommend and enforce eligibility guidelines mandated by the CTD and Local Coordinating Board (LCB). 

 
III. Accounting for coordinated transportation access including: bus passes, agency auditing, eligibility documentation, 

and trip reporting.   
 

IV. Become and remain apprised of all TD resources available or planned in service area (mobility management) and 
provide access for 9% of the TD population 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Managing the mobility resources contained within the provisions of the CTC’s duties designated by the CTD were not 
addressed when the District assumed CTC responsibilities.  To meet the requirements of the TD program a dedicated 
position for the CTC and the TD Program is mandatory for compliance with CTD mandated transportation access 
requirements. There is no financial obligation for the District since the funding for this position will be derived from 
the existing Polk County budget and CTC grant. The estimated annual salary range for this position is $35,000-to-
$48,000 plus fringe benefits.  Funds are available in the Polk County Transit FY 2015-16 Operating Budget and the 
CTC grants totaling, $1,321,387.  The TD Program fiscal year is July 1, through June 30 which translates into 3 months 
for the District FY 2015-16.  

                  
      “Approval of the TD Access Administrator Position”                                                                   
        MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Agenda Item #8 – Government & Community Relations / Erin Killebrew 
a.  LDDA Update – Farmers Market Program will continue being paid by the LDDA at $500 a month. 
 
b. LEGOLAND Ribbon Cutting – April 14th a ribbon cutting ceremony was held at the entrance to LEGOLAND 
Florida to celebrate the new Sunday Bus Route #30 in East Polk County. 
 
c. Lynx Update - Retired bus fleet is comprised of 11 total that have reached their useful life under FTA 
guidelines.  5 - 29’ and 1 – 40’ used Lynx buses have arrived and are being prepared for usage. Some of the Lynx 
buses will have their engines and transmissions rebuilt in the next 6 months.  Eventually hybrid cooling systems 
will be installed in these buses and 15% fuel reduction is expected.  
 
 
Agenda Item #9 – Executive Update / Tom Phillips 
a.  March Activity Calendar presented to the Board (Informational Only) 
 
b.  UAP updated report presented to the Board (Informational Only) 

• Everest University will be closing at the end of July and there will be no impact to District employees. 
 
c.  Strategic Planning topic worksheet passed out to the Board and collected for Dr. Ross.  
 
d. District Updates: 

• Performance Reviews will begin for the District in May with the process completed by June 2016. 
• Employee Morale survey will be launched this summer. 
• A formal recommendation will be brought to the Board, senior staff is in complete concurrence. Now 

that we have two (2) Sunday routes and three (3) Saturday passes will expire 24hrs post the purchase 
time.  This is a fair increase and will be publically noticed in June and brought to the Board in July for 
approval. 

 
Agenda Item #10 – Other Business 
None 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
Approved this 13th day of April, 2016. 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS – PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

MAY 11, 2016 

Directors: 
City of Lakeland Commissioner John Hall - Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey – Vice Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner Jim Malless - Secretary 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Don Selvage  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker 

Executive Director:  Tom Phillips 
Executive Assistant:  Marcy Harrison 

Call to Order 
8:30a.m. by Chairman John Hall 

Roll Call 
Present 
Commissioner Hall  
Commissioner Malless     
Commissioner Lindsey 
Commissioner Walker 
Commissioner Salvage 

Agenda Item #1 – Approval of Minutes 
Approval requested for the approval of the May 11, 2016 LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes. 

   “Approval May 11, 2016 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes” 
    MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



 

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING - Minutes 

Circle B Bar Reserve, 4399 Winter Lake Road, Lakeland FL 33803 
Wednesday, May 11, 2016 

8:00 a.m. 
 
 

Agenda Item 1 – Finance / David Persaud 
Proposed FY 15-16 Program of Projects / David Persaud - Annually the District Staff is required to develop a 

Program of Projects (POP), hold a Public Hearing, and obtain Board of Directors approval.  
The Public Hearing has been advertised in the Lakeland Ledger and the POP is provided 
at the attachment. 

 
Agenda Item 2 – Program of Projects (POP) 
 

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
2015-2016 PROGRAM OF PROJECTS 

 
     The Lakeland Area Mass Transit District will hold a public hearing on the proposed Program of Projects at 
8:30 am on May 11, 2016 am at 1212 George Jenkins Blvd, Lakeland, Fl. 33815  The purpose of this public 
hearing is to give individuals and/or groups an opportunity to present their views and comments on the 
proposed Program of Projects that will be included in the applications for grants from the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) under Sections 5307, and 5339 for the 2015-2016 fiscal year.  The list below shows the 
proposed Program of Projects. 
 
          FTA            Total   Program Description 
                     
Transportation Operations 
Urban Fixed - LAMTD  $ 1,920,254       $ 1,920,254 Fixed Route Operations 
Urban Fixed – WHAT  $ 1,540,821       $ 1,540,821 Fixed Route Operations 
 
 
  
Capital Projects 
Section 5307 Lakeland Cap $ 640,085            $ 640,085           Preventative Maintenance  
Section 5307 WH Cap   $ 513,607            $ 513,607           Preventative Maintenance 
Section 5339 Cap Lakeland $ 268,659            $ 268,659 Capital Bus Purchase 
Section 5339 WH   $ 212,128                   $ 212,128 Capital Bus Purchase 
 
Total Program FY2015-16 $5,095,554          $5,095,554  
  
 
To review the Program of Projects, contact David Persaud at 327-1303 or come by the LAMTD office between 
8:30 AM And 4:30 PM on weekdays at the following address: 
 1212 George Jenkins Blvd  
 Lakeland, Florida 33815 
 



 

LAMTD welcomes written comments on or before May 4, 2016 for those who are not able to attend this 
hearing.  Written comments may be mailed to: 

Citrus Connection 
1212 George Jenkins Blvd  

 Lakeland, Florida 33815 
 
All written comments will be made part of the public record.  If no comments are received, or if the comments 
that are received do not result in any changes being made, then this listing of proposed projects will become 
the final one. 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with disabilities needing special 
accommodations to participate in this proceeding should contact the LAMTD directly.  Telephone (855) 765-
5287, not later than four days prior to the proceeding.  If hearing impaired call: (TDD) (863) 534-7777 or Voice 
impaired call: 1-800-955-8770, via Florida Relay Service. 
 
 
LAMTD planning process is conducted in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Related 
Statutes.  Any person or beneficiary who believes they have been discriminated against because of race, color, 
religion, sex, age, national origin, disability, or familial status may file a written complaint with the LAMTD Title 
VI Specialist, Dean Kirkland, at Drawer HS05, P. O. Box 9005, Bartow, Florida 33831-9005. 
 
 
Agenda Item 3 – Adoption of the FY 15-16 Program of Projects 

           Annually the District Staff is required to develop a Program of Projects (POP), hold a Public Hearing, and obtain 
Board of Directors approval.   Approval of the Program of Projects is a pre-requisite to obtaining FTA funding. 

 
 Urbanized Area Formula Program (5307) 
 
 The Urbanized Area Formula Funding Program makes Federal resources available to urbanized areas for transit 

capital and operating assistance areas and for transportation related planning.  The LAMTD and 
Polk County Transit Services FY 2015-16 allocation totaled $5,095,554.   

 
 
Approval requested for the approval of the FY 2015-2016 Program of Projects”    
                  “Approval FY 2015-2016 Program of Projects” 
            MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
Approved this 11th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
______________________________________                         _____________________________ 
Chairman – Commissioner John Hall    Minutes Taker – Marcy Harrison 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 

APPROVAL ITEMS ONLY 
MAY 11, 2016 

 

 
 
   

 
 
Directors: 
City of Lakeland Commissioner John Hall - Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey – Vice Chairman 
Polk County Commissioner Jim Malless - Secretary 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Don Selvage  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker 
 
Executive Director:  Tom Phillips 
Executive Assistant:  Marcy Harrison 
 
 
Call to Order  
 8:30a.m. by Chairman John Hall 
 
 
 
Roll Call 

Present                             
Commissioner Hall                             
Commissioner Malless                            

 Commissioner Lindsey 
 Commissioner Walker 
 Commissioner Salvage 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of Minutes 
Approval requested for the approval of the May 11, 2016 LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes-
APPROVAL ITEMS ONLY.      
                  “Approval May 11, 2016 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes- APPROVAL ITEMS ONLY” 
            MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 
Circle B Bar Reserve, 4399 Winter Lake Road, Lakeland FL 33803 

Wednesday, May 11, 2016 
8:00 a.m. 

 
 

Agenda Item 1 – Finance / David Persaud 
a.  Construction of Park and Ride Facility – The District was notified early this morning that the project has been 

declined by the FDOT.  Once reviewed, the Board will be updated.  
 
b.  Coordination Agreements for Transit Disadvantaged - The LAMTD holds the designation of Community 

Transportation Coordinator (CTC) and has the responsibility to enter into contracts with any 
agency/operator receiving Federal, State or local funding for the purpose of providing transportation 
services for individuals identified as transportation disadvantaged. Standard Coordination Agreements also 
allow participating agencies to apply for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 capital grant 
funding through the Florida Department of Transportation. The Agreement will also allow the CTC to report 
the use of these vehicles within the coordinated transportation system. 

 
 Approval requested for the approval of the Coordination Agreements with Polk County service providers 

ElderPoint Ministries, Faith in Action, South Eastern Christian Assemblies of God, Noah’s Ark, The Rainey 
House, Alliance for Independence, Sunrise Community of Polk County, Peace River Center, and the Polk 
Training Center. These agreements will be in effect through December 31st, 2017”. 

    
                  “Approval Coordination Agreements with Polk County Service Providers Above” 
          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
c.   Bus and Bus Facilities Grant – The Federal Transit Administration under 5339 funding provides opportunities 

for the purchase of new buses.  LAMTD staff is requesting the approval of a grant application for the 
purchase of nine 35 ft. buses at a total of $5,628,175. A total of $4,502,540 will come directly from FTA grant 
funding and $1,125,635 will be provided by the FDOT in the form of Transportation Development Credits. 
There is no match requirement for the LAMTD.  

 
 Funding proved by the Federal Transit Administration is $4,502,540 with 1,125,635 in the form of 

Transportation Development Credits. There is no fiscal impact for the LAMTD.  
 
                    
       Approval requested for Grant Submission and subsequent award. 
                         “Approval for Grant Submission and subsequent award” 
          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 



 

d.  FY 2016 FTA Wellness to Ride Grant - The Federal Transit Administration under 5339 funding provides 
opportunities for access to healthcare for disadvantaged populations.  Citrus Connection staff are requesting 
the approval of a grant application for collaboration with the Polk County Health Care Plan for $80,000. A 
total of $60,000 will come directly from FTA grant funding and $10,000 will be provided by the Polk 
Healthcare Plan.  The LAMTD board will provide $10,000 in inkind match in the form of staff time. There is 
no cash match requirement from the District. 

 
  Funding proved by the Federal Transit Administration is $60,0000 with $10,000 in cash match from Polk 

Health Care Plan and $10,000 inkind match from LAMTD.  There is no fiscal impact for the LAMTD.  
 
       Requesting approval of Grant Submission and subsequent award. 
                         “Approval for Grant Submission and subsequent award” 
          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
e.   FDOT Joint Participation / Resolution #16-13 -  FDOT has allocated funding in the amount of $711,773 with 

$711,771 local funds for a total of $1,423,546 in Fiscal Years 2016-2018 under the State Public Transit Block 
Grant Program for operating, marketing, and promotional expenditures of a transit corridor service 
operating within the Winter Haven service area of Polk County. The funding will allow the District to continue 
the multi-modal travel options redu8cing traffic congestion within the Winter Haven service area of Polk 
County. High frequency services for buses, with frequencies less than 30 minutes, will continue during peak 
evening hours. 

 
 Requesting approval to accept additional funding under the Florida Department of Transportation Joint 

Participation Agreement. 
 
 Requesting approval of FDOT Joint Participation / Resolution #16-13. 
                         “Approval for FDOT Joint Participation / Resolution #16-13” 
          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
f.   Transportation Disadvantage Budget Amendment 2016- The State Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged administers the State Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund. The primary purpose of the 
trust fund is to provide transportation for transportation disadvantaged county residents who have no 
other means of transportation or are not sponsored for that need by any other available funding source. 

   
 Staff is recommending the transfer of $142,937 of funds from this grant award from operational to capital 

expense for computer hardware. There is no fiscal impact.  
 
   Requesting approval of Grant Budget Amendment for the period of April 1, 2016 through June 20, 2016 
 
 “Approval for Grant Budget Amendment for the period of April 1, 2016 through June 20, 2016”” 
          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
g.    FY 2016-2017 Florida Commission for Transportation Disability Grant Application for Trips and Equipment  

/Resolution #16-14   
 The State Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged administers the State Transportation 

Disadvantaged Trust Fund. The primary purpose of the trust fund is to provide transportation for 
transportation disadvantaged county residents who have no other means of transportation or are not 
sponsored for that need by any other available funding source. 

 
 The total amount of the requested funds is $1,378,183.  The CTD will fund $1,240,365 through grant funds 

and $137,818 will be budgeted into the County’s transit budget 
  
  Requesting approval of Grant Submission and subsequent award for the period of July 1, 2016 through 

 June 30, 2017 
 

 “Approval for Grant Submission and subsequent award for the period of July1, 2016 through   
  June 30, 2017” 

          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Agenda Item 2 – Legal 
 
a.     GEICO Service Agreement to including:  2 ParaTransit Vehicles, 1 Supervisor/driver, and 1 driver 
 
 Requesting approval of the GEICO Service Agreement to include vehicles and staffing 
   
  “Approval for GEICO Service Agreement to include vehicles and staffing” 
         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

 
 Adjournment 

 
Approved this 11th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
______________________________________                         _____________________________ 
Chairman – Commissioner John Hall    Minutes Taker – Marcy Harrison 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #2(a) 

 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: GEM Award  
 
Presenter: Mary Lynne Janoso, Director of Risk & HR 
 
Recommended  
Action: GEM recognition 
 
Summary: Oral presentation 
 
 
Attachments: N/A 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #3 

Agenda Item: Public Comments 

Presenter: TBD 

Recommended 
Action: TBD 

Summary: Oral Presentation 

Attachments: 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(a) 

 
Agenda Item: March 31, 2016 Monthly Financial Statement 
 FY 2015-16 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date March 31, 2016 

FY 2015-2016 
Year to Date March 31, 2016 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 50% $6,815,536 $4,822,743 71% $10.3 Million 
Expenses YTD 50% $5,161,835 $4,201,580 81% $10.3 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through March 31, 2016 totaled $4.8 million or 71% of the YTD budget. 
 

Farebox and contract revenues reflect 95% of budgeted revenues through March 31, 2016.  The revenues are 
under budget due to several reasons, contractual revenues from RAMCO $93,000 received and contract revenue 
under budget $84,000 for UAP that lags one month. 
Farebox revenues are under budget $69,000 due to decline in ridership of 21%  
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.35 million or 95% of budget.  The total budgeted revenues is $3.65 million 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants is being billed quarterly effective fiscal year 2014-2015.  The first billing covered 
the second quarter ending March 31, 2016.  These grants are on a cash basis which mean the services must be 
provided before we receive grant assistance. The grants for the JPA were lagging but will be realized in the next 
quarter. 

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 

means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income totaled $82,000 or 95% of budget. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is over budget since other reimbursements are included. 
 

• Other revenues are not significant and are on a cash basis which means these revenues are recognized when the 
cash is received and in line with the year-to-date budget. 

 
 



 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date March 31, 2016 

FY 2015-2016 
 
 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through March 31, 2016 totaled $4.2 million or 81% of the YTD budget. 

• Salaries and benefits represent 63% of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  As of March 31, 2016 those expenses totaled 
$2.99 million or 92% of the YTD budget of $3.3 million due to vacant positions. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $104,000 or 50% of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $19,000 or 27% of the YTD budget.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $198,000 or 45% YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $321,000 under budget by 11% due to decrease use of parts and supplies, a 

favorable variance 
 

• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $15,000 under budget 38% offset with revenues. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for the City of Lakeland Bicycle 
Program subscription. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments totaled $257,000, over the budget due to 

property appraiser fees and CRA fees of $139,200. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through March 31, 2016 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through March 31st the financials reflect favorable budget to 
actual performance of $621,000 (revenues over expenses) due to receipt of property tax revenue at 95% level. 

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 

 
 



6/
6/

20
16

   
2:

19
 P

M
\\C

C
-F

ile
Se

rv
er

\u
se

r\m
ha

rri
so

n\
1 

-L
AM

TD
 M

ee
tin

gs
\2

01
6 

LA
M

TD
 B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

M
ee

tin
g\

6)
 J

un
e 

8,
 2

01
6\

M
ar

 F
Y 

'1
6 

(0
53

11
6)

M
O

N
TH

 O
F 

 
(S

oR
E 

6/
3/

15
)

 

$'
s

%
$'

s
%

R
EV

EN
U

ES
:

15
Fa

re
bo

x/
Pa

ss
 S

al
es

61
,6

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
82

,2
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(2
0,

61
1)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-2
5%

42
4,

26
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
49

3,
37

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

(6
9,

10
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-1
4%

98
6,

74
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
17

C
on

tra
ct

 In
co

m
e 

(U
AP

)
27

,6
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

27
,7

87
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

21
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

82
,8

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
16

6,
72

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

(8
3,

89
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-5
0%

33
3,

44
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
17

b
O

th
er

 C
on

tra
ct

 R
ev

en
ue

51
,3

14
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
42

,7
99

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

8,
51

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
%

36
3,

89
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
25

6,
79

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

10
7,

09
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
42

%
51

3,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

18
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

In
co

m
e

1,
24

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

83
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

49
%

26
,7

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

,7
73

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

43
5%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
19

Ad
ve

rti
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
s

13
,5

52
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
14

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(9
48

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-7
%

81
,9

82
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
87

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(5
,0

19
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-6
%

17
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
20

In
ve

st
m

en
t/I

nt
er

es
t I

nc
om

e 
(n

et
)

2,
13

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

04
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

89
%

4,
99

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

56
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
43

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

79
2%

1,
12

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
Ad

 V
al

or
um

 In
co

m
e,

 n
et

65
,3

42
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
65

,3
42

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%
3,

47
7,

88
1

$ 
   

   
   

3,
47

7,
88

1
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

3,
64

8,
36

0
$ 

   
   

   
22

FD
O

T 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

6,
79

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

(1
36

,7
99

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
82

0,
79

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

(8
20

,7
95

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
1,

64
1,

59
0

$ 
   

   
   

23
Fe

de
ra

l O
pe

ra
tin

g 
G

ra
nt

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

8,
67

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

(2
18

,6
73

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
24

,9
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
31

2,
04

0
$ 

   
   

   
(1

,2
87

,1
06

)
$ 

   
   

  
-9

8%
2,

62
4,

08
0

$ 
   

   
   

24
C

ha
rit

ab
le

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
C

os
t R

ec
ov

er
y

17
,5

88
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,5
88

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

0%
12

,9
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,9

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

27
Ba

rto
w

 E
xp

re
ss

4,
69

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
40

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7%
24

,3
77

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

26
,4

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,0
33

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-8

%
52

,8
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

27
b

PC
TS

 - 
Su

pp
or

t C
os

t R
ei

m
b.

31
,4

94
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
28

,1
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

3,
33

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
%

29
7,

85
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
16

8,
96

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
8,

89
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
76

%
33

7,
93

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

R
es

er
ve

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
ES

27
6,

64
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
62

1,
61

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

(3
44

,9
73

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-5
5%

4,
82

2,
74

3
$ 

   
   

   
6,

81
5,

53
6

$ 
   

   
   

(1
,9

92
,7

93
)

$ 
   

   
  

-2
9%

10
,3

23
,6

70
$ 

   
   

 

EL
IG

IB
LE

 E
XP

EN
SE

S:
32

Sa
la

rie
s

32
8,

43
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
36

2,
43

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

(3
3,

99
8)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-9
%

1,
99

4,
15

9
$ 

   
   

   
2,

17
4,

61
9

$ 
   

   
   

(1
80

,4
60

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

-8
%

4,
34

9,
23

7
$ 

   
   

   
33

Em
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

22
0,

60
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
17

9,
58

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

41
,0

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
23

%
99

4,
32

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

1,
07

7,
48

4
$ 

   
   

   
(8

3,
16

1)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-8

%
2,

15
4,

96
8

$ 
   

   
   

34
Ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 F
ee

s 
- A

dm
in

1,
21

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
%

2,
42

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
05

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(3
,6

30
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-6
0%

12
,1

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
35

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 &
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
er

v.
31

,3
69

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

34
,5

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(3

,1
98

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-9

%
10

4,
38

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

20
7,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

03
,0

14
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-5

0%
41

4,
80

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

36
C

on
tra

ct
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
4,

32
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

75
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,4
23

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-4

4%
19

,6
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

46
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(2

6,
80

5)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-5

8%
93

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

37
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2,

37
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,5
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(9
,1

74
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-7
9%

19
,2

16
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
69

,2
75

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(5
0,

05
9)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-7
2%

13
8,

55
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
38

Fu
el

 &
 L

ub
ric

an
ts

 (n
et

)
55

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

73
,4

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

8,
42

8)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-2

5%
19

7,
70

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
0,

56
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
(2

42
,8

57
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-5

5%
88

1,
13

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

39
Fr

ei
gh

t
35

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

32
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
12

%
1,

69
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

54
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

32
%

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
R

ep
ai

r &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 A

dm
in

 B
ld

g
55

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

41
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-4

4%
1,

64
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

,3
54

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-7

3%
12

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

42
M

at
er

ia
ls

 &
 S

up
pl

ie
s

57
,3

59
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
60

,4
51

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(3
,0

91
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-5
%

32
0,

87
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
36

2,
70

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

(4
1,

83
2)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-1
2%

72
5,

41
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
43

U
til

iti
es

/T
el

ep
ho

ne
 - 

Ad
m

in
8,

96
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

20
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

48
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-3

%
47

,8
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

55
,2

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(7

,4
21

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-1

3%
11

0,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

am
ag

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

2,
06

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
15

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

(8
7)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-4
%

12
,4

02
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
12

,9
25

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(5
23

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-4
%

25
,8

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
45

Li
ab

 &
 P

ro
p 

D
am

ag
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e
17

,8
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

18
,2

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(4

18
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-2

%
10

6,
99

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

10
9,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
(2

,5
10

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-2

%
21

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

46
O

th
er

 C
or

po
ra

te
 In

su
ra

nc
e

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(5

8)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
%

1,
01

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
9%

70
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
D

ue
s 

& 
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
37

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

52
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,1
59

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-7

6%
17

,4
61

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

9,
17

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
28

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

90
%

18
,3

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
49

Ed
uc

at
io

n/
Tr

ai
ni

ng
/M

ee
tin

g/
Tr

av
el

8,
17

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
08

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
08

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

34
%

38
,2

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
36

,5
15

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

1,
74

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

5%
73

,0
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

50
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

ha
rg

es
1,

51
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

48
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,9
64

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-5

6%
8,

14
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,9
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(1
2,

75
7)

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-6
1%

41
,8

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
51

O
ffi

ce
 E

xp
en

se
7,

16
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

09
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

06
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

%
27

,4
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

24
,5

77
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
2,

86
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

%
49

,1
53

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

52
Ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 &
 P

ro
m

ot
io

n
4,

17
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

03
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

14
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
38

%
15

,3
72

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

18
,2

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,8
29

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-1

6%
36

,4
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

53
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

Ex
pe

ns
es

13
,5

71
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

85
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,7
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

63
4%

13
,5

71
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
11

,1
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

2,
47

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
%

22
,2

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
54

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
pp

ra
is

er
/T

ax
 C

ol
le

ct
or

 C
om

m
17

,8
18

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

21
,5

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(3

,7
15

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-1

7%
25

6,
97

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

12
9,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
12

7,
77

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

99
%

25
8,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
55

PT
A/

W
in

te
r H

av
en

 B
illa

bl
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

51
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(5
17

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-1
00

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,1
00

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-1

00
%

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

56
,7

16
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
34

0,
29

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

68
0,

59
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
TO

TA
L 

EL
IG

IB
LE

 E
XP

EN
SE

S:
78

3,
23

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

86
0,

30
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
(7

7,
06

9)
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-9

%
4,

20
1,

58
0

$ 
   

   
   

5,
16

1,
83

5
$ 

   
   

   
(9

60
,2

55
)

$ 
   

   
   

  
-1

9%
10

,3
23

,6
70

$ 
   

   
 

N
ET

 R
EV

EN
U

ES
 O

VE
R

(U
N

D
ER

)  
EX

PE
N

SE
S

(5
06

,5
92

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
38

,6
88

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
67

,9
05

)
$ 

   
   

   
  

62
1,

16
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
1,

65
3,

70
1

$ 
   

   
   

(1
,0

32
,5

37
)

$ 
   

   
  

(0
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

 

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Va

ria
nc

e

FY
 2

01
6

M
O

N
TH

LY
 F

IN
AN

C
IA

L 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

M
on

th
YT

D
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 A

nn
ua

l 
B

ud
ge

t
Ac

tu
al

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

M
ar

 2
01

6



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #(4(b) 

 
Agenda Item: March 31, 2016 Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2015-16 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(a) 

 
 
 

 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
     Polk County Transit Contract 
              Month of March 31, 2016 
                      Year to Date Report 
              Percent of FY Reported (50%) 

 
 

 
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $2.7 million or 82% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grant drawdown will occur later in the fiscal year based on expenses 

incurred on a reimbursement basis. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $61,900, or 66% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The County funding is designed to reflect a 1/12 allocation as cash advance to 

facilitate cash flow with receipt of $2.6 million. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $2.2 million or 67% of the year-to-date 

budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $1.2 million or 71% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $637,000 or 50% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services is for contractual cost for the Lynx service and other 

planned contractual services. The year-to-date expenses totaled $342,000 or 
82% of the YTD Budget. 

 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Financial Statement 

Polk County Contract 
Month of March 2016 

 
 

Revenue 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Revenues            
FTA 5307 Grant  $         1,125,545  17%  $        562,773   $                  -  0% 
Fares  $            186,661  3%  $         93,331   $         61,890  66% 
PCTS  $         5,245,278  80%  $     2,622,639   $     2,622,639  100% 
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     3,278,742   $     2,684,529  82% 

      
      
      

Expenses 
      

  Annual Budget % YTD Budget  YTD Actual 
Percent 

Expended 
Labor  $         3,434,803  52%  $     1,717,402   $     1,217,858  71% 
           
Contract  $            833,783  13%  $        416,892   $        341,887 * 82% 
            
Operating  $         2,288,898  35%  $     1,144,449   $        636,879  56% 
            
Total  $         6,557,484  100%  $     3,278,742   $     2,196,624  67% 

      
 

*LYNX Invoices from October 16 – February 16  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(c) 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Resolution #16-15 – Florida Department of 

Transportation (FDOT) Joint Participation 
Agreement (JPA) 

 
Presenter: David Persaud, CFO / Rodney Wetzel 
 
Recommended  
Action: Recommend Approval to accept additional funding under 

the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) though the 
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) by way of 
a Joint Participation Agreement (JPA) and associated 
Resolution #16-15. 

 
Summary: The FTA has allocated funding in the amount of $89,877 

with $89,877 local funds for a total of $179,754 in Fiscal 
Year 2016-2017. This funding is under the 5310 
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities for operating. 

  
 This funding will allow the District under this Agreement 

to improve access to fixed-route public transit service, 
service that decrease individuals with disabilities’ 
reliance on complementary paratransit service, and/or 
provision of alternative service to public transportation 
service that assist seniors and individuals with disabilities 
to fulfill their transportation needs in the Lakeland 
Urbanized Area. 

 
Attachments: Resolution #16-15 
 FDOT JPA (FM#437582-1-84-01) 
 
 











































  

 
 
 
 

1212 George Jenkins Blvd / Lakeland, FL  33815 / (863) 688-7433 / Fax (863) 683-1341 
www.polktransit.org  / www.findmyroutes.com    

 
 
 
 
 

 

Board of Directors 
Polk County Commissioner, John Hall 
Polk County Commissioner, George Lindsey 
Polk County Commissioner Jim Malless 
City of Lakeland Commissioner, Phillip Walker 
City of Lakeland Commissioner, Don Selvage 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 

RESOLUTION # 16-15 
 
 
A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District authorizing the 
signing and submission of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to 
the Florida Department of Transportation, and the acceptance of a grant award from the 
Department. 
 
 WHEREAS, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District has the authority to apply 
for and accept grant awards made by the Florida Department of Transportation as 
authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit Administration 
Act of 1964, as amended; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area 
Mass Transit District: 
 

1. That the JPA for item-Segment-Phase-Sequence 437582—84-03, Contract 
Number G0B06, is approved. 

2. The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and/or 
assurances to the Florida Department of Transportation is approved 

3. The Chairman of the Board is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant 
award, and enter into, modify or terminate any subsequent award contract or 
agreement related to this grant application unless specifically rescinded. 

 
DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS June 8, 2016  
 
 

    By: _______________________________ 
     (Signature) 
 
    John Hall, Chairman of the Board 
    Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ (seal) 

http://www.polktransit.org/
http://www.findmyroutes.com/
























LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016  
AGENDA ITEM #4(g) 

 
 
Agenda Item:   Resolution and Florida Commission for the 

Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) Trust Fund 
Trip/Equipment Grant Agreement for FY 2016/2017.  

 
Presenter:   David Persaud, CFO.  
 
Recommended Action:  Recommend that the Board approve the Trips and 

Equipment Grant with the CTD July1, 2016 through June 
30, 2017 with corresponding Resolution #16-18 

 
Financial Impact:  $1,240,365 Grant Funding, $137,818 onetime local 

match budgeted in Polk County Agreement. 
 
Summary:  The State Commission for the Transportation 

Disadvantaged administers the State Transportation 
Disadvantaged Trust Fund. The primary purpose of the 
trust fund is to provide transportation for transportation 
disadvantaged county residents who have no other means 
of transportation or are not sponsored for that need by 
any other available funding source. Serving as the new 
Community Transportation Coordinator for Polk County, 
the District is now eligible for these funds.  

 
 
Attachment:     Trip and Equipment Grant Agreement and Resolution. 
 



 
 
 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION #16-18 
FOR  

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED TRUST FUND 
 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (Recipient), hereinafter BOARD, 
hereby authorizes the execution of a Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund Grant Agreement with 
the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged. 
 

WHEREAS, this BOARD is eligible to receive a Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund 
Grant and to undertake a transportation disadvantaged service project as authorized by Section 
427.0159, Florida Statutes, and Rule 41-2, Florida Administrative Code. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD THAT: 
 

1. The BOARD has the authority to enter into this grant agreement. 
 

2. The BOARD authorizes the Chairman to execute the grant agreement on behalf of the 
BOARD with the Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged. 

 
3. The BOARD authorizes the Chairman to sign any and all agreements or contracts 

which are required in connection with the grant agreement. 
 

5. The BOARD authorizes the Chairman to sign any and all assurances, reimbursement 
invoices, warranties, certifications and any other documents which may be required in 
connection with the agreement or subsequent agreements. 

 
 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 8 DAY OF June 2016        
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  
 
John Hall         
Typed name of Chairperson 

 
_______________________________________________ 
Signature of Chairperson 

 
ATTEST:  Tim Darby 
 
  BY:          

      Attorney  
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #4(h)  

 
 
Agenda Item: Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Grant 

Applications for the LAMTD Section 5307 funds and 
corresponding Resolution.  

 
Presenter: David Persaud, CFO 
 
Recommended  
Action: Recommend Approval to apply for the Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA) Section 5307 Grant Funds, as 
Designated Recipient and under the Countywide Transit 
System Agreement. 

 
Summary: The District is submitting a grant application to the 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) under Section 
5307 operating assistance, more specifically to operate 
specific Lakeland Area urban routes and to perform 
preventative maintenance.  

 
The pending application is in response to FTA funding 
apportionments for the Lakeland Urbanized Area for FY 
2016-2017. 
 

Funding: This grant requires both 80/20 match for preventative 
maintenance and 50/50 match for operations, the FTA 
shall provide $2,611,507 with the District providing 
$2,121,849 in matching funds for a total of $4,733,356.  

 
Attachments: Resolution 16- 



  

 
 
 
 

1212 George Jenkins Blvd / Lakeland, FL  33815 / (863) 688-7433 / Fax (863) 683-1341 
www.polktransit.org  / www.findmyroutes.com    

 
 
 
 
 

 

Board of Directors 
Polk County Commissioner, John Hall 
Polk County Commissioner, George Lindsey 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Jim Malless 
City of Lakeland Commissioner, Keith Merritt 
City of Lakeland Commissioner, Don Selvage 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 

RESOLUTION # 16-19 
 
 
A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District authorizing the 
signing and submission of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to 
the Federal Transit Administration, and the acceptance of a grant award from the 
Department. 
 
 WHEREAS, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District has the authority to apply 
for and accept grant awards made through Federal Transit Administration, as authorized by 
the Federal Transit Administration Act of 1964, as amended; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area 
Mass Transit District: 
 

1. This resolution applies to Federal Program(s) under 49 U.S.C. Section(s) 5307. 

2. The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and assurances 
to the Federal Transit Administration is approved 

3. The Chairman of the Board authorizes the Executive Director of the Lakeland 
Area Mass Transit District to sign the application, accept a grant award, and 
enter into, modify or terminate any subsequent award contract or agreement 
related to this grant application unless specifically rescinded. 

 
DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS June 8, 2016  
 
 

    By: _______________________________ 
     (Signature) 
 
    John Hall, Chairman of the Board 
    Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ (seal) 

http://www.polktransit.org/
http://www.findmyroutes.com/


LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Legal 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended   
Action: 2016-2017 LAMTD Board Schedule Resolution #16-16 
  
Summary:  Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: Resolution #16-16 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: LAMTD Board Meeting Schedule Change 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended   
Action: LAMTD Board Schedule Change Resolution #16-17 
  
Summary:  Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: Resolution #16-17 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #5(c) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Peace River UAP Renewal 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby 
 
Recommended   
Action: Approval of the Peace River UAP Renewal 
  
Summary:  Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: Peace River UAP 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 10, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #6 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: FAST Act 2015 update 
 
Presenter: Erin Killebrew, Director of Government & Community 
 Relations  
 
Recommended 
Action: None 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 
 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 9, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #7 

 
 
Agenda Item: Board Action(s) 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended   
Action: None 
  
Summary:  None 
 
Attachments: None 
 
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

June 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #8(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Executive Updates 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended 
Action: Oral Presentation 
 
Summary: 
 

• Monthly Activities Report 
• Fixed, ParaTransit and UAP Ridership Update 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016  
AGENDA ITEM #8(a) 

Agenda Item: UAP and Ridership Report 

Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 

Recommended 
Action: Information only 

Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 
including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 
Response through April, 2016 

Attachments: UAP and Ridership Report 



UAP Ridership Totals 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
March 17,113 10,492 27,605

April 15,834 11,055 26,889
UAP Ridership 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
Polk State College

March 3,566                         1,446                    5,012                    
April 3,409                         1,655                    5,064                    

LEGOLAND
March 176                            1,477                    1,653                    

April 170                            1,415                    1,585                    
South Eastern University

March 235                            63                          298                       
April 304                            34                          338                       

Everest University
March 644                            103                       747                       

April
COLTS

March 2,275                         1,964                    4,239                    
April 2,123                         1,664                    3,787                    

Veterans
March 3,522                         1,223                    4,745                    

April 3,305                         1,228                    4,533                    
Southern Technical College

March 313                            707                       1,020                    
April 284                            648                       932                       

Polk Health Care
March 2,919                         1,141                    4,060                    

April 2,657                         1,163                    3,820                    
Polytechnic

March 1,333                         43                          1,376                    
April 1,317                         51                          1,368                    

Central Florida Healthcare
March 1,687                         344                       2,031                    

April 1,818                         416                       2,234                    
New Beginnings High School

March 443                            1,981                    2,424                    
April 447                            2,781                    3,228                    













LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #8(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Strategic Planning Summary - KSI 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended 
Action: Oral Presentation 
 
Summary: Strategic Planning Summary  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 
 

Strategic Planning Retreat Summary 
Prepared by Larry Ross, Facilitator 

May 10, 2016 
 
Prior to the retreat a survey was administered to the board and the key staff that was designed to assess 
the current situation in the context of a SWOT analysis. The results of the survey served as the backdrop 
for the board discussions. The retreat began with Larry Ross setting the expectations for the day. 
Following a public hearing the board returned to a facilitated discussion designed to build consensus 
following a thorough review of the firm’s current situation. Close examination of both the internal and 
external dimensions was initiated in the pre-retreat interviews and surveys. During the retreat this 
information was shared and the discussion focused first on updating and building consensus on the 
position of the organization.  
 
Key Strengths: 
• People 
• Leadership (board and staff) 
• Reputation (brand equity) 
• Infrastructure (location/position) 
• Coherent government support 
• First choice for narrow market segment 
• Employer of choice 

(pay/benefits/environment) 
 
 
 
 
 
Key Weaknesses 
• Lack of resources ($) 
• Macro public perception (necessary evil, 

tolerated . . .)  
• Lack of employer support 
• Service levels/geographic coverage 
• Limited demand in primary market 
• Inconsistent branding 

 

Major Opportunities 
• Focus 
• New Ridership (economic growth, market-

driven, exceeding expectations) 
• Changing public perception (locally/ 

regionally-incrementally, not macro) 
• Millennial demographic (size, forecast) 
• Senior demographic 
• Private, “Last Mile” partnerships 
• Reputation as good stewards of tax $ 
• Empower Innovation (risk taking) 
• Become “Best in Class” (peer group) 
• Expand District boundaries (county-wide, 

Plant City, ??) 
 
Major Threats 
• Entrenched demographic (Boomers) 
• Conflicting government regulations 
• Transportation alternatives 
• Lack of relevance 
• Political shift/distrust of government 
• Labor markets 

 
There was some debate concerning the level of opportunities versus threats. Following a thoughtful 
discussion, the board reached consensus on the appropriate position of the organization within the four 
quadrant SWOT model. The internal dimension was seen as somewhat stronger (and trending) with 
some notable weaknesses that should be addressed in the near term. The external dimension was more 
difficult to assess and after discussion the consensus was that the threats were somewhat more 
significant than the possible opportunities. This results in the Citrus Connection being classified as a 



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 2 

Quadrant IV. organization with a strategic imperative to “Pivot.“ Strategic implications may include the 
sourcing or re-allocating of key resources directed towards minimizing the remaining weaknesses while 
maintaining or enhancing the strengths of the organization and developing new strategies for mitigating 
the latent threats.  
 
The discussion shifted from the current situation analysis to a thoughtful identification of the strategic 
issues under consideration. The board members were asked to review the SWOT items and cluster 
related items. The result was the identification and prioritization of four Key Strategic Initiatives (KSIs) 
for subsequent investigation and development of corresponding action plans. (see following templates) 
 

 
  

Quadrant I: 
Growth 

Quadrant II: 
Limited Options 

Quadrant IV: 
Pivotal/Change 

Quadrant III. 
Survival 

Opportunities 

Threats 

Strengths Weaknesses 

X 

X 



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 3 

 
 
Four Key Strategic Issues (KSIs) were identified during the discussion: 

1) New Ridership (outside of the traditional public transportation market segment) 
2) Five Year Focus (including vision and rebranding) 
3) Five Year CIP (reflecting Five Year Focus and New Ridership KSIs) 
4) Talent Management (acquisition, succession planning, organizational structure) 

 
 
Next Steps:   
 
The board will adopt a monthly meeting schedule in conjunction with regularly scheduled board 
meetings to address the development of strategic measurable outcomes related to each of the four KSIs. 
As outcomes are identified, work will begin on the development of corresponding action steps, timelines 
for completion and assigned responsibilities. The goal is to have a completed draft of the plan submitted 
for board approval at the September board meeting. 
 
 
The retreat adjourned at 12:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
Larry Ross 
 
  



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 4 

 
 
Key Strategic 

Initiative Ideal Outcome Action Steps Timeline Responsibility 

 
I.  NEW RIDERSHIP 
 

A. Sponsored ridership 
to reach X,XXX by 
2021 

1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

B. Average age of 
rider lowered by  
20% by 2021 

1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 

  

C. Percent of new 
ridership revenue to 
exceed XX% of total 
revenue.  
 

1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

D. Geographic 
expansion 

1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

E. Development of a 
comprehensive “New 
Ridership” marketing 
plan 
• Objectives 
• Budget 
• Media 
• Timing 
• Evaluation 
• Crisis plan 
• Targeted 

audiences 
 

1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

H.  1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

     
 
  



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 5 

 
 
Key Strategic 

Initiative Ideal Outcome Action Steps Timeline Responsibility 

 
II.  FIVE YEAR FOCUS 

 
A. Revise Vision  
     Statement 

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
B. Re-brand/re-name 
 

 
1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

 
C. Geographic 
expansion 
 

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
D.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
E.  
 

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
  
 

  

 
F.  
 
 

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

  



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 6 

Key Strategic 
Initiative Ideal Outcome Action Steps Timeline Responsibility 

 
III.  FIVE YEAR CIP 

 
A.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
B.  

 
1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

 
C.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
D.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

    
     

 
 
 
  



Citrus Connection: Retreat Summary (5/10/16)                 page 7 

Key Strategic 
Initiative Ideal Outcome Action Steps Timeline Responsibility 

 
III.  TALENT 
MANAGEMENT 

 
A.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
B.  

 
1.  
2. 
3. 
4. 
 

  

 
C.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

 
D.  

 
1.  
2.  
3.  
4. 
 

  

    
     

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JUNE 8, 2016 
AGENDA ITEM #8(c) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Polytechnic Update 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended 
Action: Oral Presentation 
 
Summary: N/A  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 


	Agenda Item 1(a) - Minutes
	Agenda Item 2(a) - GEM Awards
	Agenda Item 3(a) - Public Comments
	Agenda Item 4(a) - LAMTD Financials
	Agenda Item 4(b) - PT Financials
	Agenda Item 4 (c) - Joint Participation Agreement
	Agenda Item 4(c) - Resolution #16-15
	Agenda Item 4d, 4e, 4f
	Agenda Item 4(g) - Resolution 16-18
	Agenda Item 4 (g) - Resolution #16-18 TD 2016-17
	Agenda Item 4(h) - Resolution #16-19
	Agenda Item 4(h) #16-19
	Agenda Item 4(i) - TE Cover
	Agenda Item 4(i) - Polk 2016-17 TE Grant Agreement
	Agenda ITEM 5 - Legal (a) New Schedule
	Agenda ITEM 5 - Legal (b) Schedule Change
	Agenda ITEM 5 - Legal (c) Peace River UAP
	Agenda ITEM 6(a) - Govt Relations DC Fly In
	Agenda ITEM 7 - Board Action
	Agenda ITEM 8(a) - Executive Report
	Ridership Agenda 6-8-16
	Ridership Report June 2016
	Agenda ITEM 8(b) - Executive Report - KSI
	Citrus Connection Retreat Summary 2016
	Agenda ITEM 8(c) - Executive Report - Polytechnic Update
	ADP6CD.tmp
	Sheet1

	Mar FY '16 (053116).pdf
	YTD




